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Thi CAfFO. pursuanl to 40 C.F.R... 22. L~b nnd 22.1 b). imultaneou 'ly c

d condud till procee' mg, v herein EP aUege thal esp n ent ''Iii J. ted
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ectioilli 311 and 31 0

regulation .

eRA, U. _ . § llO2 J aIlu 1. J0 2 and it impJ mentin6
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D REGUL TORY FRAME ORK

Section 31] 0' EPCRA 2 .S.c.· llO_Ua) and 4 ' .R. 370.21. prov'de ~11' L the

9

10

n

12

13

wner or peralOr of a facility' re'CJ!uired lo 'ubm1L a . eriaJ afety D~ ta She l.

'MSDS' ), or an a]ternativlSDS rep fling IL l (0 the Local Em rg.n y PJannjng

Comm.i.rt e • LEPC'), th" tat ,mrg nc Re pon c Commi ion" RC") and the

fire department with jurisdiction over lh facility for eacb hazardou chemical pre ent at

the facility according m th.e minimum fur hold chedule provided in par. graph b of 0

c.F.R. ' 370,20.

4. S lion 3P ofEPCR 4 _.' § 1I0? ,and40 C.P.. 70. 5, r uire lhwner r

15 operaror 0' a facility tbal is required to prepare or have vailable an D for

17

19

20

_I

bazardou. chemi aI under 0 cupational . fety and He ,ILh Act f 1970 r 0 A'), _9

u. .C. § 651 er seq. 0, u -mit all nnual emergency' nd hazardou . emical inventory

form "Inventory Form' i rhazard us chemica· . are pre "ent he [ac~ i uring th

preeding c ,lendar ear'n quamitie ab e me hr hold level e tabl" " e

370.20(b), he Inventory ann mu [be llbmitted. by M reh 1 of each year ta me S

the C, nd the fire department ba .ng jur' diction over he fLcility.
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

Seclion 325(c) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § Ill»5(c). outhorizes EPA 10 assess civil penalties

for any violalion of Sections 311 and 312 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. §§ I 1021 and 11022.

The Administrator of EPA has delegated enforcemelll authority under EPCRA to the

Regional Administrators by EPA delegation 22-3-A, dated May II. 1994. The Regional

Administrator. EPA Region IX. in !Urn. has delegmed the aulllority 10 enfon:e EPCRA

§§ 302, ]03. 304, 311. 312, 322. and 323 10 the Director of the Superfund Division with

delegation R9 1290.18.

Respondent manufactures and marl:cls specialty polY1ller 31ld electronic materials for

targeted applications, focused on communication and computer markets. at 2225 West

Chandler Boulevard. in Maricopa County. Chandler. AZ (the: "Facility'·).

On or before December 31. 2005, Respondent produced. used, or distributed Barium

Titanate, Chemical AbstrdCt Service Registry ("CAS") Number 12<»1~21·1,at the

Facility.

In 2005 a daily average of 26,310 pounds (I!>s.) of Barium Titanate was present ;ltthe

Facility.

In a letter dated August 14.2006. Respondent voluntarily disclosed to EPA that it had lIot

submitted an MSDS for Barium Titanate, or an Illventory Form including Barium

Titanate for the calendar year 2005. as required by Sectiolls 311 and 312 of EPCRA, 42

U.S,c. §§ 11021 and J 1022.

The Arizona SERC is comprised of members from state agencies with roles in hazardous

material emergency management, Arizona's 15 LEPCs. as well as representatives from

23 local government and industry,

CNR.> R"gers Corporali,,". Chandl". AZ ]
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The Maricopa County LEP i th LEP with juri ruction 0 rUle F cilhy.

Th City of Chandl r Fir Departmen~L I.he fir depart:.m 01 ha iog juri. dicti n e rh

Facilit.

I. On Augu t 11. 2 06. e~pondeDtsubmitted an aernati e SD· rep0l1ing Ii t. and an
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In enlor Fonn containing informalion JIl BariLlm TiLanale u e aL!II p, m[y durin

cal ndar year 200 to the Arizona SERe the aricop' County P, and he ity r

Ch ndler ~ iFe ep men t.

ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

aU time' rele an thi CAlFO, Re andent h' een tne owner or operator oftbe

Facility.

. all f me' relev, l t lhi CAIFO~ Reponden bas been a 'person . defined b

'rion (7) 0, CR 14- . .C. ; 11049(7).

Respondent i' required [0 prepare or hay available an MSDS undr 29 I .F.R.

COUNTJ

, allure LO imely Submit M DS
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e forth here in heir emirety.

Th Facility i a 'Ifacc"lity" defined by ection 329(4" a EP RA, 4_ U.S.C.

§ I III 9(4 .
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As of December 2005, Respondent u;.ed Barium Titanate, at the Facility in quamities

above Ihe applicable thresholds established in 40 C.F.R. § 370.20(b).

Respondem's failure to submit MSDS infomtation for Barium Titanate present at the

facility to the SERe. the LEPC. and the fire department within three months after receipt

of the Barium Titanate at the facility in an amoum exceeding the threshold esw.bhshed at

40 C.F.R § 370.20(b). is a violation of Section 311 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11021.

COUNT II

(Failure to Timely Submit Annual Chemical Inventory Forms)

Paragraphs I through 21 above arc incorporated ocrein by this reference as if they were

set forth here in theiremirety.

Barium Titanate is a "hazardous chemical" as defined in Section 312(c) of EPCRA, 42

U.S.c. § 11022(e).

Respondent's failure to include Barium Titanate on the Inventory Form containing

information on hazardous chemicals present at lhe Facility during calendar year 2005 to

the SERC. the LEPC. and the appropriate fire department on or before March I of 2006 is

a violation of Section 312 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11022.

CIVIL PENALTy

Section 325(e}(1) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § Ilo.t5(c)( I). as adjusted by the Debt

Collection Improvement Act of 1996, sa 40 C.F.R. Part 19. authori~es a civil penalty of

up \0 527,500 per day for each day a violation of EPCRA occurs after January 30. 1997.

CAlF{) Rogers Corponuioo. Chandler. AZ ,
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For violalions that occur on or after March 15.200:+. a civil adminislr~live penally of

$32.500 per day is authorized.

Under EPA's Final Policy Statement on fllei'lI/hu!or Sttlf-Policillg: Oi'·COl'U)'.

Disclosures. Corree/ioll and Pre,'eluion oIVio/IIIIO/ls. 65 Fed Reg 19618. ("Audit

Policy"), effective May 11> 2000, EPA has the discretion to eliminate or substantially

reduce the gravity component of a penally if il determines thalli respondent has satisfied

the nilll: conditions set fonh in tbe Audit Policy.

The nine conditions II respondent must satisfy under tbe Audit Policy are: (I) systematic

discovery of the violation through an environmental audit or a compliance manageffil'nl

system; (2) voluntary discovery; (J) prompt disclosure: (4) discovery and disclosure

independem of governmem or (hird pany plaimiff; (5) cOlTl:l:tion and remediation; (6)

prevention of recurrence; (7) no repeat violations; (8) other violalion, excluded; and (9)

cooperation.

Regulated entities deemed by EPA to have satisfied the nine conditions in the Audit

Policy may not face any gravity-ba>ed civil penalties. If the regulated emity meets all but

the first condition (Systematic Discovery). EPA may reduce the gravity-based penalties

by 15%. EPA reserves the right to collect any e<:onomic benefit realized as a result of the

violation disclosed.

EPA has concluded that Respondent has. as described herein. satisfied the nine conditions

outlined in the audit policy and therefore will not fm:e gravity-based ci vii penalties.

SYHematjc Discovery of !lie Vjolation Through ill! Envir(l!lmental Audit or a CompliaflCe

n Management Sy,tem. Respondent discovered the "iolations as the reslill of a routine.

23 regularly scheduled environmemal audit corn!ucted at Rogers Corporation, On July 27.

CAIFO Rag.... corpon.uon, OIlI.... ler, AZ 6



,
3

• 31.

,
•
, 32.

•
,
" 33.

"
"
",.

" 34.

"
"..
" ".
10

"
"

2006. The audit was done pursuant 19 Rogers Corporation's envirc,>nmenlal health and

safely self-audit program. to determine compliance wilh applicable: environmental laws

and regulations.

Voluntary DiscQvery. Respondent's discovery of the violations was voluntary and did

not resull from any legally mandated monitoring or sampling requirement prescribed by

SlalUle, regulation, pennit. judicial or administrative order. or consent agrecmem.

Prompt Disclru;lIr!<. Respondent fully disclosed the violations tQ EPA within 21 days

after i\ discovered tile violations t13d, or may 113\'<:. occurred. lltc violations "'ere

discovered On July 27. 2006. and were reponed [0 EPA in a leuer dated August 14, 2006.

Discovery and Disc1o<>urc Independent of Government or Third rallY Plaintiff.

Respondent discovered and disclosed the violations to EPA prior to any federal. state. or

local agency inspeetion or investigation. notice of citizen suit. the Ii ling of a third-pal1 y

complaint. the reponing of the violations by a "whistle·blower:' or imminent discovery

by a regulatory agency.

Correction and Remediatjon. Respondent submitted the MSDS. and the revised

Inventory Form for calendar year 2005, 10 the Arizona SERC, the Maricopa County

LEPC. and the City of Chandler Fire Dcpanment. on August 14.2006. The disclosed

violations did not cause any environmental or human harm.

Prevent Resurrence. Respondent has told EPA that it plans to take the following steps to

prevent a recurrence of any violation of Sections 311 and 312 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. §§

[1021 and I 1022: Respondent will refine its chemical inventory system and retrain staff

responsible for purchasing chemicals to ensure entry of all chemicals into it." chemical

23 inventory system.

C!VFO ROll." Co<poralion. O\andler. AZ ,



36.

,
,
, 37

,
,
, 38.

•
• 39.

"
"
"
"
"
" 40.

"
" 41.

"
"
"
" F.

" 42.

No Repeal Violations. Respondent has not had any other occurrence of these specific

violations at the Facility within the past three years or at any other facility owned or

operated by Respondent within the past five years.

Other ViQlatjons Excluded. The violations did not resull in serious actual limn. present

an imminent and substantial endangennent to public health or Ihe environment. or viol:ue

the: spa:ific terms of any judicial or adminislrdlive order or CQnsent agreement

Coopcraljon. Respondenl has fully cooperated wilh. EPA in determining the applicability

ofth<: Audit Policy.

In signing this CAIFO. Respondent cel1ifics undu penally of law that the information

submitted to EPA in the [eller dated August 14.2006. disclosing violations of

EPCRA Sections 311 and 312. 42 U.S.c. §§ 11021 and 11022. and the information in

paragraphs 30-38 of this CAIFO are based upon true, accurate. and complete infonnation

thai the s.ignatory Call "crify personally, or rcgarding which !he signalory ha., inquired of

the person or persons directly responsible for gathering the infonnalion.

EPA has dctermined that the violations resulted in an insignificant amount of economic

benefit.

For the reasons set fonh abovc. all penaltics based on the gravity ofthc violations and the

savings of economic costS rdaled to the failure to limely submit MSDS and a revised

Inventory Fonn are waiyed.

ADMISSIONS AND WAIVERS

For purposes of this proceeding. Respondcnt admits the jurisdictional allegations aboye.

23 and agrees Ihalthe EPA Administrator and Region (X Administr•.uor havc jurisdiclion

CAIFO ROle.....C~on. nw.:Jkr. AZ 8
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and authority over the subject mailer oflhe action commenced in this CAIFO and over

Respondent pursuant to Seclion ]25 of EPCRA. 42 U.s.c. § 11045. and 40 CF.R.

§§ 22.4 and 22.34. Respondent consents to and agrees nOl to contesT EPA's jurisdiction

and authority to enter imo and issue this CAIFO and to enforce its lenns. Further.

Respondent will not conlest EPA's jurisdiction and authority 10 compel compliance ",ilh

this CAIFO in any eRforcemcllt proceedings. either administrative or judicial. or to

impose sanctions for violations of this CAfl'O.

Respondent admits any allegations of foct or law set forth in Section C and D or this

CAIFO. Respondent hereby waives any rights it may ha\'C to conlest the allegations set

forth in this CA!FO and waives any rights it may have to a hearing on any issue relating

10 the factual allegations or legal conclusions set fOrih in this CAIFO. irlCluding without

limitation II hearing pursuant to Section 325 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11045. Respondent

hereby consents to the issuance of this CAIFO without adjudieatioo and waives any rights

it may have to appeal the Final Order auaehed to this Consent Agreemcm and made part

of this CAIFO.

PARTIES BOUND

This CAIFO shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its agentS. successors.

and assigns and upon all persons acting under or for Respondcnt_ This CAIFO shall

constitute full scnlcmcnt of the violations alleged herein.

No change in ownership or cOllXlrate. partnership. or legal .tatus relating to the Facility

will in any way alter Respondent's obligalioos and responsibilities under this CAIFO.

CAIFO lI.og~n; Corpc::><auon. Chandter. AZ ,
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The undersigned representative of Respondent Ilcrcby certifies thaI he or she is fully

authorized by Respondent to enter into this CNfO. to ClIccutc it. and lO legally bind

RespondentIa it

PAyMENT Of C!V1L PENALTY

Bccau.e EPA has concluded that Respondent I",.~, as described herein. satisfied all nine

conditions set forth in the Audit Policy, Complainant has not sought gravity-based

penalties for the violations alleged•

Based on Complainant's determination that any c<:onomic benefit derived from the

violations was insignificam. Complainant has nOi sought to coUc<:t any economic benefit

penally for the violations alleged.

Complainant and Respondent hereby CQnsenl to the assessment of a civil penally in the

amount of ZERO OOLLARS ($0) in SClllcmem Orille violations set fOrlh in Seclion D

above. This CAIFO conslitutes a sealement of the civil and administrative penally claims

of the United States for the violations of Sections 311 and 312 of EPCRA specifically

alleged in Section D above.

The effect of the se111emenl described above is conditional upon the accuracy of

Respondent's representalions to EPA as memorialized in pamgrnphs 30-38 of lhis CAIFO

and Respondent'S self-disclosure dated August 14,2006.

RESERVATION Of RIGHTS

EPA expressly reserves all rights and defenses lhat it may have.

CAIFO ROlen; CorporaUOCI. CbalIdI.., AZ "
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EPA hereby reserves all of its statutory and regulatory powers. authorities. rights. and

remedies, both legal and equitable. including wilOOuI limitation, the right to require

Respondent to pcrfoml tasks in addition to those required by this CAIFO and the right 10

assess penalties under Seclion 325 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11045. or lake OIller

appropriate aclion, in the event that Respondent fails to comply with any of the

requirements oflhis CNFO.

This CAIFO shall not be construed as a cownant not to sue. a release. waiver. or

limitation of any rights. remedies. poV'iCrs. or authorities. civil or criminal that EPA has

under EPCRA or any OIher SlOllllQry. regulatory. or common lnw enforcemem authority

of the United Slates, except as otherwise SCI forth herein.

The entry of this CNFO and Respondelll's consent to comply shall not Iimil or otherwise

preclude EPA from laking additionnl enforcemcnt aClions should EPA dClermine lhat

such actions are waffilnled, excepl as lhey relate 10 Respondenl's liabilily for federal ci"il

penalties for the specific alleged violmions set fonh in Seclion D of lhis CAIFO.

This CNFO is not intended 10 be. nor shall il be construed as, a pennil. This CNFO

does not relieve Respondem of any obligalion 10 obtain and comply with any local. state.

or federal pennits.

Notwithslanding compliance with the lerms of lhis CAIFO. Respondenl is not released

from liabilily. if any. for the COSIS of any response aclions taken by EPA. EPA reserves

its right to seek reimbursemenl from Respondenl for any response COSIS incurred hy lhe

United States lhal may result or arise from lhe allcged counts set forth in Section D.

CAIFO ROle.. Corporation. ChoDdkr. AZ "
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OTHER CLAIMS

N01hing in this CAIFO shall C<Jn,tilU1e or be construed as a release from any other claim.

cause of action, or demand in law orequily by or again~t any person, firm. partnership,

entity, or corporation for any liability it may have ari~ing QuI of or relating in any way [0

the generation. storage. treatment, handling. transportation. release. or disposal of any

hazardous con:;tiluems, hazardous sub,!;'nces, halardous wilSles. pollulallts, or

contaminants found aI. taken 10. or taken from the Facility.

MISCELLANEOUS

This CNFO may be amended or modified only by written agrccmelll executed by both

EPA and Respondent.

The headings in this CAIFO are for convenience of reference only and shall no! affeet

interpretation of this CNFO.

Each party shall bear its own allomeys' fees. COsls. and disbursemcms incurred in this

proceeding.

In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18(b){J) and 22.3 I(b), this CAIFO shall be efrective

on the dale that the Final Order comained in this CAIFO. having bel.'n approved and

issued by either the Regional JudicjaJ Officer or Regional Administrator. is filed.

CAIFO Rogers Corl'ool1ion. Chandler. AZ "
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Docket No. EPCRA-9-2007- 00 0 7

I hereby certify that the original copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and
Final Order, with the Docket number referenced above, has been filed with the Region 9
Hearing ClerK and that a copy was sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to:

Jeffrey S. Stewart
Manager, COfporate EnVironmental­
Health & Safety Engineering, West
Rogers Corporation
100 N. Dobson Road
Chandler, AZ 65224

~.~t1ft ! 6u.\
Regional Hearing ClerK
U,S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105


